ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
March 8, 2001
3:45 p. m

HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Fred Dyson, Chair
Representati ve Peggy WIlson, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Sharon Ci ssna

HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCOCI AL SERVI CES MEMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
EDUCATI ON MEMBERS PRESENT
Representati ve Con Bunde
Representative Brian Porter
Representative Gary Stevens
Representati ve Peggy W son
EDUCATI ON MEMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representati ve G etchen Guess
Representative Joe G een
COW TTEE CALENDAR

Confirmati on Hearing:

University of Al aska Board of Regents

Kevin Meyers, Ph.D. - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

JT. HOUSE HES/ EDU COW TTEES - 1- March 8, 2001



No previous action to record
W TNESS REAQ STER

KEVI N MEYERS, Ph.D., Appointee

to the University of Al aska Board of Regents

Phillips Al aska, Inc

PO Box 100360

Anchor age, Al aska 99510

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the University of
Al aska Board of Regents

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-25, SIDE A [House HESS tape]
Number 0001

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the joint neeting between the House
Heal t h, Education & Social Services Standing Committee and the
House Special Commttee on Education to order at 3:45 p.m
Present at the call to order from the House Health, Education
and Social Services Standing Commttee were Representatives
Dyson, WIson, Coghill, Stevens, G ssna, and Kohring. Menber s
present from the House Special Committee on Education were
Represent ati ves Bunde, Porter, Stevens, and WIson. [The m nutes
for HB 43 and HB 112 are found in the 3:02 p.m mnutes for the
sane date. The coversheet for the Helping Kids Succeed/ AK
Initiative for Comrunity Engagenent overview are found in the
4:40 p.m coversheet for the sane date.]

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

University of Al aska Board of Regents

CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttees would consider the
confirmati on of Kevin Meyers, Ph.D. to the University of Al aska
Board of Regents.

Number 0054

KEVIN MEYERS, Ph.D., Appointee to the University of Al aska Board
of Regents testified via tel econference. He stated that it is
an honor to serve on the University Al aska Board of Regents, and
that his interest stens from his belief that education is the
key to both personal developnent and the developnent of
[ Al aska] . He said the university system plays a large roll in
terms of helping the state develop and sol ving chall enges. He

JT. HOUSE HES/ EDU COW TTEES - 2- March 8, 2001



expressed that being on the Board of Regents, he feels he'll be
able to make sonme contribution to that goal.

REPRESENTATI VE BUNDE asked Dr. Meyers where he sees the
university going in the short term- 3 to 5 years, and in the
long term- 10 to 15 years.

DR. MEYERS replied that his short-term goal is to develop a way
to capture nore of the graduating [high school] seniors. He
stated that nost high school seniors choose to attend college
within a few hundred mles of their hometown. He stated that he
thinks, right now, [Alaska] continues to lose quite a few high
school students to universities Qutside. He said his concern is
that once those students |eave, they have the propensity not to
return.

Nunmber 0326

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked whether Dr. Meyers had any conments
on where the university should be going in terns of research.

DR. MEYERS answered that he was surprised as to how nmuch of a
research institute [the university] is, especially [the
University of Al aska] Fairbanks. He stated that he thinks it is
necessary to build on [existing] prograns. He remarked that
[Alaska] is at an advantage with its unique offering to the
wor | d. What distinguishes Alaska is the Arctic, the marine
fisheries, and the forestry. He remarked that it is necessary
to look at the specialty of a region or the people attracted to
a university. He stated that [the University of Al aska] can
offer the world an opportunity to |learn fromwhat is done here.

Number 0467

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA remarked that she thinks the diversity of
the people distinguishes Alaska in a wonderful way. She asked
Dr. Meyers if he has thought of how the university can better
serve and augnent that strength.

DR. MEYERS responded that he hasn't given any particul ar thought
to that, but that he agrees it is one of the resources [the
uni versity] needs to nmake the nost of.

CHAI R DYSON asked Dr. Meyers if he has thought of how to deliver
secondary education to the rural communities in Al aska.

JT. HOUSE HES/ EDU COW TTEES - 3- March 8, 2001



DR. MEYERS answered that this is always a challenge in a state
as geographically diverse as [Al aska]. He stated that he thinks
it is hard to beat the first-hand presence of teachers in the
classroom yet, in order to provide the diversity of the skills
and technology that are inportant to conpete in current society,
there needs to be a way to provide better "distance learning.”
He remarked that it is necessary to nake use of technol ogy and
the growing bandwi dth so as to have al nost the |ook and feel of
being in the classroom

Number 0631

REPRESENTATI VE PORTER nmade a notion to nove the nomnation of
Kevin Meyers to the University of Alaska Board of Regents
forward to the full bodies for consideration. There being no
objection, the confirmation of Kevin Myers was advanced from
the House Health, Education and Social Services Standing
Comm ttee and the House Special Conmttee on Educati on.

Number 0650

CHAI R DYSON adjourned the joint neeting of the House Health,
Education and Social Services Standing Commttee and the House
Special Commttee on Education. He then called for an at-ease
at 3:55 p.m in order to reconvene hearings on |egislation
before the House Health, Education and Social Services Standing
Committee. [ The minutes for HB 43 and HB 112 are found in the
3:02 p.m mnutes for the sane date.]

JT. HOUSE HES/ EDU COW TTEES - 4- March 8, 2001



